
Index to Financial Statements

UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, DC 20549

FORM 10-Q
(Mark One)

x QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the quarterly period ended April 30, 2013
OR

☐ TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
For the transition period from              to             

Commission File Number: 0-28132

STREAMLINE HEALTH SOLUTIONS, INC.
(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)

Delaware 31-1455414
(State or other jurisdiction of

incorporation or organization)
(I.R.S. Employer

Identification No.)

1230 Peachtree Street, NE, Suite 1000,
Atlanta, GA 30309

(Address of principal executive offices) (Zip Code)
(404) 446-0050

(Registrant’s telephone number, including area code)

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the
preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days.
Yes x No o

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has submitted electronically and posted on its corporate Web site, if any, every Interactive Data File required to be
submitted and posted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to submit and post
such files). Yes x No o

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer or a non-accelerated filer or a smaller reporting company. See the definitions
of “large accelerated filer,” “accelerated filer” and “smaller reporting company” in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act. (Check one):

Large accelerated filer ☐ Accelerated filer ☐ Non-accelerated filer ☐ Smaller reporting company x
(Do not check if a smaller reporting company)

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act).    Yes ☐        No x

The number of shares outstanding of the Registrant’s Common Stock, $.01 par value, as of June 14, 2013: 12,964,809



Index to Financial Statements

TABLE OF CONTENTS
  Page
Part I. FINANCIAL INFORMATION  
Item 1. Financial Statements 2
 Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets at April 30, 2013 and January 31, 2013 2
 Condensed Consolidated Statements of Operations for the three months ended April 30, 2013 and 2012 4
 Condensed Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the three months ended April 30, 2013 and 2012 5
 Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements 6
Item 2. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations 16
Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk 26
Item 4. Controls and Procedures 26
Part II. OTHER INFORMATION  
Item 1. Legal Proceedings 27
Item 6. Exhibits 27
 Signatures 28



Index to Financial Statements

PART I. FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Item 1. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

STREAMLINE HEALTH SOLUTIONS, INC.

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

(Unaudited)

    
 April 30, 2013  January 31, 2013

ASSETS    
Current assets:    

Cash and cash equivalents $ 4,001,223  $ 7,500,256
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubtful accounts of $134,000 and $134,000, respectively 9,591,294  8,685,017
Contract receivables 558,762  1,481,819
Prepaid hardware and third party software for future delivery 24,448  22,777
Prepaid client maintenance contracts 1,525,261  1,080,330
Other prepaid assets 810,321  997,024
Other current assets 241,105  110,555

Total current assets 16,752,414  19,877,778
Non-current assets:    
Property and equipment:    

Computer equipment 3,467,545  3,420,452
Computer software 2,200,854  2,196,236
Office furniture, fixtures and equipment 870,079  843,274
Leasehold improvements 697,570  697,570

 7,236,048  7,157,532
Accumulated depreciation and amortization (6,130,170)  (5,958,727)
Property and equipment, net 1,105,878  1,198,805

Contract receivables, less current portion 104,526  126,626
Capitalized software development costs, net of accumulated amortization of $18,159,290 and $17,464,601,
respectively 12,581,974  12,816,486
Intangible assets, net 7,873,643  8,188,131
Deferred financing costs, net 417,816  541,740
Goodwill 12,152,883  12,133,304
Other 438,951  383,708
Total non-current assets 34,675,671  35,388,800

 $ 51,428,085  $ 55,266,578

See accompanying notes.
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April 30, 2013  January 31, 2013

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY    
Current liabilities:    

Accounts payable $ 794,684  $ 1,495,913
Accrued compensation 1,355,100  2,088,850
Accrued other expenses 1,384,160  1,325,039
Current portion of long-term debt 1,250,000  1,250,000
Deferred revenues 9,211,458  9,810,442
Contingent consideration for earn-out 1,319,559  1,319,559
Current portion of deferred tax liability 35,619  35,619

Total current liabilities 15,350,580  17,325,422
Non-current liabilities:    

Term loans 12,125,000  12,437,501
Warrants liability 4,956,000  3,649,349
Lease incentive liability, less current portion 32,015  99,579
Deferred income tax liability, less current portion 529,709  529,709

Total non-current liabilities 17,642,724  16,716,138
Total liabilities 32,993,304  34,041,560

Series A 0% Convertible Redeemable Preferred Stock, $.01 par value per share, $11,999,985 redemption value,
4,000,000 shares authorized, 3,999,995 shares issued and outstanding, net of unamortized preferred stock discount
of $4,049,980 and $4,234,269, respectively 7,950,005  7,765,716
Stockholders’ equity:    

Common stock, $.01 par value per share, 25,000,000 shares authorized; 12,680,615 and 12,643,620 shares issued
and outstanding, respectively 126,806  126,436
Convertible redeemable preferred stock, $.01 par value per share, 1,000,000 shares authorized, no shares issued —  —
Additional paid in capital 48,913,339  49,178,389
Accumulated deficit (38,555,369)  (35,845,523)

Total stockholders’ equity 10,484,776  13,459,302

 $ 51,428,085  $ 55,266,578

See accompanying notes.
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CONDENDSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

 (Unaudited)

 Three Months Ended

 April 30, 2013  April 30, 2012

Revenues:    
Systems sales $ 324,646  $ 353,530
Professional services 919,351  1,122,439
Maintenance and support 3,380,600  2,351,575
Software as a service 1,848,741  1,617,589

Total revenues 6,473,338  5,445,133
Operating expenses:    

Cost of systems sales 638,597  686,528
Cost of services 974,462  552,482
Cost of maintenance and support 984,588  725,281
Cost of software as a service 579,080  682,306
Selling, general and administrative 3,580,867  1,669,760
Research and development 1,097,010  456,363

Total operating expenses 7,854,604  4,772,720
Operating income (loss) (1,381,266)  672,413
Other income (expense):    

Interest expense (566,565)  (207,830)
Miscellaneous income (expenses) (742,265)  36,045

Earnings (loss) before income taxes (2,690,096)  500,628
Income tax expense (19,750)  (9,000)

Net earnings (loss) $ (2,709,846)  $ 491,628
Less: deemed dividends on Series A Preferred Shares $ (341,637)  $ —
Net earnings (loss) attributable to common shareholders $ (3,051,483)  $ 491,628
Basic net earnings (loss) per common share $ (0.24)  $ 0.05
Number of shares used in basic per common share computation 12,534,474  10,307,259
Diluted net earnings (loss) per common share $ (0.24)  $ 0.05
Number of shares used in diluted per common share computation 12,534,474  10,307,259

See accompanying notes.

4



Index to Financial Statements

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

 (Unaudited)

 Three Months Ended

 April 30, 2013  April 30, 2012

Operating activities:    
Net earnings (loss) $ (2,709,846)  $ 491,628
Adjustments to reconcile net earnings (loss) to net cash (used in) provided by operating activities:    

Depreciation 171,443  179,552
Amortization of capitalized software development costs 694,689  554,983
Amortization of intangible assets 314,488  91,196
Amortization of other deferred costs 82,814  19,688
Valuation adjustment for warrants liability 645,354  —
Share-based compensation expense 467,401  178,323

Changes in assets and liabilities, net of assets acquired:    
Accounts and contract receivables 38,880  1,767,779
Other assets (414,056)  (486,029)
Accounts payable (768,793)  154,110
Accrued expenses (632,741)  (202,723)
Deferred revenues (598,984)  (1,122,692)

Net cash (used in) provided by operating activities (2,709,351)  1,625,815
Investing activities:    

Purchases of property and equipment (78,516)  (227,878)
Capitalization of software development costs (460,177)  (507,000)

Net cash used in investing activities (538,693)  (734,878)
Financing activities:    

Principal repayments on term loans (312,501)  —
Proceeds from exercise of stock options and stock purchase plan 61,512  —

Net cash used in financing activities (250,989)  —
(Decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents (3,499,033)  890,937
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 7,500,256  2,243,054
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period $ 4,001,223  $ 3,133,991

See accompanying notes.
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NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATMENTS
(Unaudited)

NOTE A — BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying unaudited Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared by Streamline Health Solutions, Inc. (the "Company"),
pursuant to the rules and regulations applicable to quarterly reports on Form 10-Q of the U. S. Securities and Exchange Commission. Certain information and
note disclosures normally included in annual financial statements prepared in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles have been
condensed or omitted pursuant to those rules and regulations, although we believe that the disclosures made are adequate to make the information not
misleading. In the opinion of our management, all adjustments (consisting of normal recurring accruals) considered necessary for a fair presentation of the
Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements have been included. These Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements should be read in conjunction with
the financial statements and notes thereto included in our most recent annual report on Form 10-K, Commission File Number 0-28132. Operating results for
the three months ended April 30, 2013 are not necessarily indicative of the results that may be expected for the fiscal year ending January 31, 2014.

NOTE B — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Company's significant accounting policies are presented in “Note B – Significant Accounting Policies” in the fiscal year 2012 Annual Report on
Form 10-K. Users of financial information for interim periods are encouraged to refer to the footnotes contained in the Annual Report on Form 10-K when
reviewing interim financial results.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles ("GAAP") requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the financial statements and accompanying notes. Actual results could differ from those
estimates.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The FASB’s authoritative guidance on fair value measurements establishes a framework for measuring fair value, and expands disclosure about fair value
measurements. This guidance enables the reader of the financial statements to assess the inputs used to develop those measurements by establishing a
hierarchy for ranking the quality and reliability of the information used to determine fair values. Under this guidance, assets and liabilities carried at fair value
must be classified and disclosed in one of the following three categories:

Level 1: Quoted market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2: Observable market based inputs or unobservable inputs that are corroborated by market data.

Level 3: Unobservable inputs that are not corroborated by market data.

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, accounts payable and accrued expenses approximate fair value based on the short-
term maturity of these instruments. Cash and cash equivalents are classified as Level 1. The carrying amount of the Company’s long-term debt approximates
fair value since the interest rates being paid on the amounts approximate the market interest rate. Long-term debt is classified as Level 2. The fair value of
contingent consideration for earn-out and warrants liability is determined by management with the assistance of an independent third party valuation
specialist. The Company used a binomial model to estimate the fair value of the contingent consideration for earn-out and warrants liability. The contingent
consideration for earn-out and warrants liability are classified as Level 3.

Revenue Recognition

The Company derives revenue from the sale of internally developed software either by licensing or by software as a service ("SaaS"), through the direct
sales force or through third-party resellers. Licensed, locally-installed, clients utilize the Company’s support and maintenance services for a separate fee,
whereas SaaS fees include support and maintenance. The Company also derives revenue from professional services that support the implementation,
configuration, training, and optimization of the applications. Additional revenues are also derived from reselling third-party software and hardware
components.

The Company recognizes revenue in accordance with ASC 985-605, Software-Revenue Recognition and ASC 605-25 Revenue Recognition — Multiple-
element arrangements. The Company commences revenue recognition when the following criteria all have been met:

• Persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists,
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

• Delivery has occurred or services have been rendered,

• The arrangement fees are fixed or determinable, and

• Collection is considered probable

If the Company determines that any of the above criteria have not been met, the Company will defer recognition of the revenue until all the criteria
have been met. Maintenance and support and SaaS agreements entered into are generally non-cancelable, or contain significant penalties for early
cancellation, although clients typically have the right to terminate their contracts for cause if the Company fails to perform material obligations. However, if
non-standard acceptance periods or non-standard performance criteria, cancellation or right of refund terms are required, revenue is recognized upon the
satisfaction of such criteria, as applicable.

Revenues from resellers are recognized gross of royalty payments to resellers.

Multiple Element Arrangements

On February 1, 2011, the Company adopted Accounting Standards Update No. 2009-13, Revenue Recognition (Topic 605), “Multiple-Deliverable
Revenue Arrangements — a consensus of the FASB Emerging Issues Task Force” (“ASU 2009-13”) on a prospective basis. ASU 2009-13 amended the
accounting standards for revenue recognition for multiple deliverable revenue arrangements to:

• Provide updated guidance on how deliverables of an arrangement are separated, and how consideration is allocated;
• Eliminate the residual method and require entities to allocate revenue using the relative selling price method and;
• Require entities to allocate revenue to an arrangement using the estimated selling price (“ESP”) of deliverables if it does not have vendor specific

objective evidence (“VSOE”) or third party evidence (“TPE”) of selling price.

Terms used in evaluation are as follows:
• VSOE — the price at which an element is sold as a separate stand-alone transaction
• TPE — the price of an element, charged by another company that is largely interchangeable in any particular transaction
• ESP — the Company’s best estimate of the selling price of an element of the transaction

The Company follows accounting guidance for revenue recognition of multiple-element arrangements to determine whether such arrangements contain
more than one unit of accounting. Multiple-element arrangements require the delivery or performance of multiple solutions, services and/or rights to use
assets. To qualify as a separate unit of accounting, the delivered item must have value to the client on a stand-alone basis. Stand-alone value to a client is
defined in the guidance as those that can be sold separately by any vendor or the client could resell the item on a stand-alone basis. Additionally, if the
arrangement includes a general right of return relative to the delivered item, delivery or performance of the undelivered item or items must be considered
probable and substantially in the control of the vendor.

The Company has a defined pricing methodology for all elements of the arrangement and proper review of pricing to ensure adherence to Company
policies. Pricing decisions include cross-functional teams of senior management, which uses market conditions, expected contribution margin, size of the
client’s organization, and pricing history for similar solutions when establishing the selling price.

Software as a service

The Company uses ESP to determine the value for a software as a service arrangement as the Company cannot establish VSOE and TPE is not a
practical alternative due to differences in functionality from the Company's competitors. Similar to proprietary license sales, pricing decisions rely on the
relative size of the client purchasing the solution, and include calculating the equivalent value of maintenance and support on a present value basis over the
term of the initial agreement period. Typically revenue recognition commences upon client go-live on the system, and is recognized ratably over the contract
term. The software portion of SaaS for Health Information Management ("HIM") products does not need material modification to achieve its contracted
function. The software portion of SaaS for the Company's Patient Financial Services ("PFS") products require material customization and setup processes to
achieve their contracted function.

System Sales

The Company uses the residual method to determine fair value for proprietary software licenses sold in a multi-element arrangement. Under the residual
method, the Company allocates the total value of he arrangement first to the undelivered elements based on their VSOE and allocates the remainder to the
proprietary software license fees.

7



Index to Financial Statements
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

Typically pricing decisions for proprietary software rely on the relative size and complexity of the client purchasing the solution. Third party
components are resold at prices based on a cost plus margin analysis. The proprietary software and third party components do not need any significant
modification to achieve its intended use. When these revenues meet all criteria for revenue recognition, and are determined to be separate units of accounting,
revenue is recognized. Typically this is upon shipment of components or electronic download of software. Proprietary licenses are perpetual in nature, and
license fees do not include rights to version upgrades, fixes or service packs.

Maintenance and Support Services

The maintenance and support components are not essential to the functionality of the software and clients renew maintenance contracts separately from
software purchases at renewal rates materially similar to the initial rate charged for maintenance on the initial purchase of software. The Company uses VSOE
of fair value to determine fair value of maintenance and support services. Rates are set based on market rates for these types of services, and the Company’s
rates are comparable to rates charged by its competitors, which is based on the knowledge of the marketplace by senior management. Generally, maintenance
and support is calculated as a percentage of the list price of the proprietary license being purchased by a client. Clients have the option of purchasing
additional annual maintenance service renewals each year for which rates are not materially different from the initial rate, but typically include a nominal rate
increase based on the consumer price index. Annual maintenance and support agreements entitle clients to technology support, upgrades, bug fixes and
service packs.

Term Licenses

The Company cannot establish VSOE fair value of the undelivered element in term license arrangements.  However, as the only undelivered element is
post-contract customer support, the entire fee is recognized ratably over the contract term.  Typically revenue recognition commences once the client goes live
on the system.  Similar to proprietary license sales, pricing decisions rely on the relative size of the client purchasing the solution. The software portion of the
Company's CAC (“Computer Assisted Coding”) products generally do not require material modification to achieve their contracted function.

Professional Services

Professional services components that are not essential to the functionality of the software, from time to time, are sold separately by the Company.
Similar services are sold by other vendors, and clients can elect to perform similar services in-house. When professional services revenues are a separate unit
of accounting, revenues are recognized as the services are performed.

Professional services components that are essential to the functionality of the software, and are not considered a separate unit of accounting, are
recognized in revenue ratably over the life of the client, which approximates the duration of the initial contract term. The Company defers the associated
direct costs for salaries and benefits expense for PFS contracts. As of April 30, 2013 and 2012, the Company had deferred costs of approximately $257,000
and zero, respectively. These deferred costs will be amortized over the identical term as the associated SaaS revenues. Amortization expense of these costs
was approximately $45,000 and zero as of April 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

The Company uses VSOE of fair value based on the hourly rate charged when services are sold separately, to determine fair value of professional
services. The Company typically sells professional services on a fixed fee basis. The Company monitors projects to assure that the expected and historical rate
earned remains within a reasonable range to the established selling price.

Severances

From time to time, the Company will enter into termination agreements with associates that may include supplemental cash payments, as well as
contributions to health and other benefits for a specific time period subsequent to termination. For the three months ended April 30, 2013 and 2012 , we
incurred approximately $383,000 and $70,000 in severance expenses. At April 30, 2013 and January 31, 2013, the Company had accrued for $544,000 and
$548,000 in severances, respectively. The Company anticipates these severances accrued at April 30, 2013 to be paid out in full by August 31, 2013.

Equity Awards

The Company accounts for share-based payments based on the grant-date fair value of the awards with compensation cost recognized as expense over
the requisite vesting period. The Company incurred total annual compensation expense related to stock-based awards of $467,000 and $178,000 for the three
months ended April 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

The fair value of the stock options granted have been estimated at the date of grant using a Black-Scholes option pricing model. Option pricing model
input assumptions such as expected term, expected volatility, and risk-free interest rate impact the fair value estimate. Further, the forfeiture rate impacts the
amount of aggregate compensation. These assumptions are
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subjective and are generally derived from external (such as, risk free rate of interest) and historical data (such as, volatility factor, expected term, and
forfeiture rates). Future grants of equity awards accounted for as stock-based compensation could have a material impact on reported expenses depending
upon the number, value and vesting period of future awards.

The Company issues restricted stock awards in the form of Company common stock. The fair value of these awards is based on the market close price
per share on the day of grant. The Company expenses the compensation cost of these awards as the restriction period lapses, which is typically a one year
service period to the Company.

Income Taxes

Income taxes are accounted for under the asset and liability method. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences
attributable to differences between the financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases and for tax credit
and loss carry-forwards. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which
those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. In assessing net deferred tax assets, the Company considers whether it is more likely than
not that some or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized. The Company establishes a valuation allowance when it is more likely than not that all or a
portion of deferred tax assets will not be realized.

The Company provides for uncertain tax positions and the related interest and penalties based upon management’s assessment of whether certain tax
positions are more likely than not to be sustained upon examination by tax authorities. At April 30, 2013, the Company believes it has appropriately
accounted for any uncertain tax positions. As part of the Meta acquisition, the Company assumed a current liability for an uncertain tax position, and expects
to settle this amount in fiscal 2013. The Company has recorded $152,000 and zero of reserves for uncertain tax positions and corresponding interest and
penalties as of April 30, 2013 and January 31, 2013, respectively.

Net Earnings (Loss) Per Common Share

The Company presents basic and diluted earnings per share (“EPS”) data for its common stock. Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the net income
attributable to shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of shares of common stock outstanding during the period. Diluted EPS is
determined by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to shareholders and the weighted average number of shares of common stock outstanding adjusted for
the effects of all dilutive potential common shares comprised of options granted, unvested restricted stocks, warrants and convertible preferred stock.
Potential common stock equivalents that have been issued by the Company related to outstanding stock options, unvested restricted stock and warrants are
determined using the treasury stock method, while potential common shares related to Series A Convertible Preferred Stock are determined using the “if
converted” method.

The Company's unvested restricted stock awards and Series A Convertible Preferred stock are considered participating securities under ASC 260,
“Earnings Per Share”, which means the security may participate in undistributed earnings with common stock. The Company's unvested restricted stock
awards are considered participating securities because they entitle holders to non-forfeitable rights to dividends or dividend equivalents during the vesting
term. The holders of the Series A Preferred Stock would be entitled to share in dividends, on an as-converted basis, if the holders of common stock were to
receive dividends, other than dividends in the form of common stock. In accordance with ASC 260, a company is required to use the two-class method when
computing EPS when a company has a security that qualifies as a “participating security.” The two-class method is an earnings allocation formula that
determines EPS for each class of common stock and participating security according to dividends declared (or accumulated) and participation rights in
undistributed earnings. In determining the amount of net earnings to allocate to common stock holders, earnings are allocated to both common and
participating securities based on their respective weighted-average shares outstanding for the period. Diluted EPS for the Company's common stock is
computed using the more dilutive of the two-class method or the if-converted method.

In accordance with ASC 260, securities are deemed to not be participating in losses if there is no obligation to fund such losses. For the three months
ended April 30, 2013, the unvested restricted stock awards and the Series A Preferred Stock were not deemed to be participating since there was a net loss
from operations. For the three months ended April 30, 2012, the effect of unvested restricted stock to the earnings per share calculation was immaterial. As of
April 30, 2013, there were 3,999,995 shares of preferred stock outstanding, each share is convertible into one share of the Company's common stock. For the
three months ended April 30, 2013, the Series A Convertible Preferred Stock would have an anti-dilutive effect if included in diluted EPS and therefore, was
not included in the calculation. As of April 30, 2013 and January 31, 2013, there were both 137,327 unvested restricted shares of common stock outstanding.
The unvested restricted shares at April 30, 2013 were excluded from the calculation as their effect would have been antidilutive.
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The following is the calculation of the basic and diluted net earnings (loss) per share of common stock:

Three Months Ended,

April 30, 2013  April 30, 2012

Net earnings (loss) $ (2,709,846)  $ 491,628
Less: deemed dividends on Series A Preferred Stock (341,637)  —
Net earnings (loss) attributable to common shareholders $ (3,051,483)  $ 491,628
Weighted average shares outstanding used in basic per common share computations 12,534,474  10,307,259
Stock options and restricted stock —  —
Number of average shares used in diluted per common share computation 12,534,474  10,307,259
Basic net earnings (loss) per share of common stock $ (0.24)  $ 0.05
Diluted net earnings (loss) per share of common stock $ (0.24)  $ 0.05

Diluted (loss) earnings per share exclude the effect of 2,643,742 and 1,690,051 outstanding stock options for the three months ended April 30, 2013 and
2012, respectively. The inclusion of these shares would be anti-dilutive. For the three months ended April 30, 2013, the outstanding common stock warrants
of 1,400,000 would have an anti-dilutive effect if included in diluted EPS and therefore, were not included in the calculation. There were no outstanding
warrants as of April 30, 2012.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In February 2013, the FASB issued an accounting standard update relating to improving the reporting of reclassifications out of accumulated other
comprehensive income. The update would require an entity to report the effect of significant reclassifications out of accumulated other comprehensive income
on the respective line items in net income if the amount being reclassified is required under GAAP to be reclassified in its entirety to net income. For other
amounts that are not required under GAAP to be reclassified in their entirety to net income in the same reporting period, an entity is required to cross-
reference other disclosures required under GAAP that provide additional detail about those amounts. The update is effective for reporting periods beginning
after December 15, 2012. This standard did not have a material effect on the Company's consolidated financial position, results of operations, or cash flows.

NOTE C — ACQUISITIONS

On December 7, 2011, the Company completed the acquisition of substantially all of the assets of Interpoint Partners, LLC (“Interpoint”). This
acquisition expanded the Company’s product offering into business intelligence and revenue cycle performance management. The purchase agreement also
includes a contingent earn-out provision, which had an estimated value of approximately $1,320,000 and 1,320,000 at April 30, 2013 and January 31, 2013,
respectively. The contingent earn-out is to be paid in cash or an additional convertible subordinated note based on the acquired Interpoint operations financial
performance for the 12 month period beginning June 30, 2012 and ending June 30, 2013.

On August 16, 2012 the Company acquired substantially all of the outstanding stock of Meta Health Technology, Inc., a New York corporation
(“Meta”). The Company paid a total purchase price of approximately $14,790,000, consisting of cash payment of $13,288,000 and the issuance of 393,086
shares of the Company's common stock at an agreed upon price of $4.07 per share. The fair value of the common stock at the date of issuance was $3.82.

The acquisition of Meta represents the Company's on-going growth strategy, and is reflective of the solutions development process, which is led by the
needs and requirements clients and the marketplace in general. The Meta suite of solutions, when bundled with the Company's existing solutions, will help
current and prospective clients better prepare for compliance with the ICD-10 transition. The Company believes that the integration of business analytics
solutions with the coding solutions acquired in this transaction will position the Company to address the complicated issues of clinical analytics as clients
prepare for the proposed changes in commercial and governmental payment models.

The purchase price is subject to certain adjustments related principally to the delivered working capital level, which will be settled in the third quarter of
fiscal 2013, and/or indemnification provisions. Under the acquisition method of accounting, the purchase price was allocated to the tangible and intangible
assets acquired and liabilities assumed based on their estimated fair values as of the acquisition date as follows:
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 Balance at August 16, 2012

Assets purchased:  
Cash $ 1,126,000
Accounts receivable 2,300,000
Fixed assets 133,000
Other assets 513,000
Client relationships 4,464,000
Internally developed software 3,646,000
Trade name 1,588,000
Supplier agreements 1,582,000
Covenants not to compete 720,000
Goodwill(1) 8,073,000

Total assets purchased $ 24,145,000
Liabilities assumed:  

Accounts payable and Accrued liabilities 1,259,000
Deferred revenue obligation, net 3,494,000
Deferred tax liability 4,602,000

Net assets acquired $ 14,790,000
Consideration:  

Company common stock 1,502,000
Cash paid 13,288,000

Total consideration $ 14,790,000
 _______________
(1) Goodwill represents the excess of purchase price over the estimated fair value of net tangible and intangible assets acquired, which is not deductible for

tax purposes.

NOTE D — DERIVATIVE LIABILITIES

In conjunction with the private placement investment, the Company issued common stock warrants exercisable for up to 1,200,000 shares of common
stock at an exercise price of $3.99 per share. The warrants were initially classified in stockholders' equity as additional paid in capital at the allocated amount,
net of allocated transaction costs, of approximately $1,425,000. Effective October 31, 2012, upon shareholder approval of anti-dilution provisions that reset
the warrants' exercise price if a dilutive issuance occurs, the warrants were reclassified as non-current derivative liabilities. The fair value of the warrants was
approximately $4,139,000 at October 31, 2012, with the difference between the fair value and carrying value recorded to additional paid in capital. Effective
as of the reclassification as derivative liabilities, the warrants are re-valued at each reporting date, with changes in fair value recognized in earnings each
reporting period as a credit or charge to miscellaneous income (expense). The fair value of the warrants at April 30, 2013 was approximately $4,956,000, with
the increase in fair value since January 31, 2013 of approximately $645,000 recognized as miscellaneous expense in the consolidated statements of
operations. The estimated fair value of the warrant liabilities as of April 30, 2013 was computed using Monte-Carlo simulations based on the following
assumptions: annual volatility of 70%; risk-free rate of 0.7%, dividend yield of 0.0% and expected life of approximately five years. The model also included
assumptions to account for anti-dilutive provisions within the warrant agreement.

During the three months ended April 30, 2013, the Company recorded an immaterial correction of an error regarding the valuation of its common stock
warrants originated during the third quarter of fiscal 2012 in conjunction with its private placement investment. The Company concluded there was a
cumulative $19,000 overstatement of the loss before income taxes on its condensed consolidated statement of operations for the fiscal year-ended January 31,
2013, as previously reported. The aforementioned cumulative $19,000 overstatement has been recorded in the condensed consolidated statement of operations
for the three months ended April 30, 2013. The January 31, 2013 condensed consolidated balance sheet, as previously reported, reflects a $51,000
overstatement of deferred financing costs, a cumulative $150,000 understatement of deemed dividends on Series A Preferred Stock, a $7,000 overstatement
of the Series A preferred stock, and a $602,000 overstatement of additional paid in capital. These aforementioned condensed consolidated balance sheet
adjustments have been recorded on the April 30,
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2013 condensed consolidated balance sheet as presented herein. The Company concluded that the impact of the corrections were not quantitatively and
qualitatively material to the prior fiscal year, and the respective quarters ended in 2012 and 2013.

NOTE E — LEASES

The Company rents office and data center space and equipment under non-cancelable operating leases that expire at various times through fiscal year
2018. Future minimum lease payments under non-cancelable operating leases for the next five fiscal years and thereafter are as follows:

 Facilities  Equipment  Fiscal Year Totals

2013 (nine months remaining) $ 666,000  $ 135,000  $ 801,000
2014 750,000  162,000  912,000
2015 322,000  40,000  362,000
2016 162,000  2,000  164,000
2017 167,000  1,000  168,000
Thereafter 85,000  —  85,000
Total $ 2,152,000  $ 340,000  $ 2,492,000

Rent and leasing expense for facilities and equipment was approximately $236,000 and $196,000 for the three months ended April 30, 2013 and 2012,
respectively.

NOTE F — DEBT

Term Loan and Line of Credit

On December 7, 2011, in conjunction with the Interpoint acquisition, the Company entered into a subordinated credit agreement with Fifth Third Bank
in which the bank provided the Company with a $4,120,000 term loan, which was scheduled to mature on December 7, 2013, and a revolving line of credit,
which was scheduled to mature on October 1, 2013.

In conjunction with the Meta acquisition, on August 16, 2012, the Company amended the subordinated term loan and line of credit agreements with
Fifth Third Bank, whereby Fifth Third Bank provided the Company with a $5,000,000 revolving line of credit, a $5,000,000 senior term loan and a
$9,000,000 subordinated term loan, a portion of which was used to refinance the previously outstanding $4,120,000 subordinated term loan. Additionally, as
part of the refinancing in August 2012, the Company mutually agreed to settle the success fee included in the previous subordinated term loan for $700,000.
The difference between the $233,000 success fee accrued through the date of the amendment and the amount paid was recorded to deferred financing costs
and is being amortized over the term of the amended loan. The Company paid a commitment fee in connection with the senior term loan of $75,000, which is
included in deferred financing costs.

The Company will be required to pay a success fee in accordance with the amended subordinated term loan, which is recorded in interest expense as
accrued over the term of the loan. The success fee is due on the date the entire principal balance of the loan becomes due. The success fee is accrued in
accordance with the terms of the loan in an amount necessary to provide the lender a 17% internal rate of return through the date the success fee becomes due.

These new term loans and revolving line of credit mature on August 16, 2014. The loans are secured by substantially all of the Company's assets. The
senior term loan principal balance is payable in monthly installments of approximately $104,000 which commenced in November 2012, and and will continue
through the maturity date, with the full remaining unpaid principal balance due at maturity. The entire unpaid principal balance of the subordinated term loan
is due at maturity. Borrowings under the senior term loan bear interest at a rate of LIBOR (0.20% at April 30, 2013) plus 5.50%, and borrowings under the
subordinated term loan bear interest at 10% from August 16, 2012 and thereafter. Accrued and unpaid interest on the senior and subordinated term loans is
due monthly through maturity. Borrowings under the revolving loan bear interest at a rate equal to LIBOR plus 3.00%. A commitment fee of 0.40% will be
incurred on the unused revolving line of credit balance, and is payable quarterly. At April 30, 2013, the Company had no outstanding borrowings under the
line of credit, and had accrued approximately $5,000 in unused balance commitment fees. The proceeds of these loans were used to finance the cash portion
of the acquisition purchase price and to cover any additional operating costs as a result of the Meta acquisition.

The Company evaluated the subordinated term loan and revolving line of credit for modification accounting. The Company evaluated the debt
restructuring to determine if it was either a modification or extinguishment. The Company concluded that the
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restructuring qualifed as a modification. As such, fees paid to or received from the creditor were capitalized and are being amortized to interest expense over
the remaining term of the restructured debt using the effective interest method.

The significant covenants as set forth in the term loans and line of credit are as follows: (i) maintain adjusted EBITDA as of the end of any fiscal
quarter greater than $5,000,000, (after consideration of certain acquisition and transaction costs) on a trailing four fiscal quarter basis beginning October 31,
2012; (ii) maintain a fixed charge coverage ratio for the fiscal quarter ending January 31, 2013 and each April 30, July 31, October 31, and January 31 of not
less than 1.50:1 calculated quarterly for the period from October 31, 2012 to the date of measurement for the quarters ending January 31, 2013, April 30, 2013
and July 31, 2013 and on a trailing four quarter basis thereafter; (iii) on a consolidated basis, maintain ratio of funded debt to adjusted EBITDA as of the end
of any fiscal quarter less than 3:1, calculated quarterly on a trailing four fiscal quarter basis beginning October 31, 2012. The Company was in compliance
with all loan covenants at April 30, 2013 as a result of obtaining a waiver from its lender.

Outstanding principal balances on long-term debt consisted of the following at:

  
Balance at April 30,

2013  
Balance at January 31,

2013

Senior term loan  $ 4,375,000  $ 4,688,000
Subordinated term loan  9,000,000  9,000,000
Line of credit  —  —
Total  13,375,000  13,688,000

Less: Current portion  1,250,000  1,250,000
Non-current portion of long-term debt  $ 12,125,000  $ 12,438,000

Future principal repayments of long-term debt consisted of the following at April 30, 2013:

  Payments Due by Period

  2013  2014

Senior term loan  $ 937,000  $ 3,438,000
Subordinated term loan  —  9,000,000
Line of credit  —  —

Total principal repayments  $ 937,000  $ 12,438,000

Contingent Earn-Out Provision

As part of the asset purchase, Interpoint is entitled to receive additional consideration contingent upon certain financial performance measurements
during a one year earn-out period commencing June 30, 2012 and ending on June 30, 2013. The earn-out consideration is calculated as twice the recurring
revenue for the earn-out period recognized by the acquired Interpoint operations from specific contracts defined in the asset purchase agreement, plus one
times Interpoint revenue derived from the Company's customers, less $3,500,000. The earn-out consideration, if any, will be paid no later than July 31, 2013
in cash or through the issuance of a note with terms identical to the terms of the Convertible Note (which was converted on June 15, 2012, please see "Note F
- Debt" in the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements as part of the annual report on Form 10-K for the year ended January 31, 2013), except with
respect to issue date, conversion date and prepayment date. The earn-out note restricts conversion or prepayment at any time prior to the one year anniversary
of the issue date.

As of April 30, 2013, the Company estimates the payment obligation in connection with the earn-out will be $1,320,000. As of January 31, 2013, the
Company estimated the payment obligation to be $1,320,000. No change in value of the estimated earn-out was recorded for the three months ended April 30,
2013.

NOTE G — INCOME TAXES
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Income tax expense consists of federal, state and local tax provisions. For the three months ended April 30, 2013 and 2012, the Company recorded
federal tax provisions of $11,000 and zero, respectively. For the three months ended April 30, 2013 and 2012 the Company recorded state and local tax
provisions of $9,000 and $9,000, respectively.

NOTE H — STOCK BASED COMPENSATION

Stock Option Plans

The summary of stock option activity for the three months ended April 30, 2013:

Three Months Ended
April 30, 2013

Options  
Weighted Average

Exercise Price

Outstanding — beginning of period 2,685,237  
Granted 171,000  6.81
Exercised (36,994)  1.66
Forfeit/Expired (65,500)  1.96
Outstanding — end of period 2,753,743  $ 3.41
Exercisable — end of period 850,788  $ 2.41
Weighted average grant date fair value of options granted during year $ 3.07   

As of April 30, 2013, there was approximately $2,951,000 of unrecognized compensation expense related to unvested options that will be recognized
over a remaining weighted average period of three years. The 2013 and 2012 stock-based compensation was estimated at the date of grant using a Black-
Scholes option pricing model with the following weighted average assumptions.

 Three Months Ended

 April 30, 2013  April 30, 2012

Expected life 5 years  5 years
Risk-free interest rate 0.39%  0.51%
Weighted average volatility factor 0.54  0.53
Dividend yield —  —

That cost is expected to be recognized over a remaining weighted average period of three years. The expense associated with stock option awards was
approximately $402,000 and $128,000, for the three months ended April 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively. Cash received from exercise of options and the
employee stock purchase plan was approximately $62,000 and zero, respectively, for the three months ended April 30, 2013 and 2012. 
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Restricted Stock

The Company grants restricted stock awards under the 2005 Incentive Compensation Plan to associates and members of the board of directors. The
Company has also issued restricted shares as inducement grants to executives. The restrictions on the shares granted generally lapse over a one year term of
continuous employment from the date of grant. The grant date fair value per share of restricted stock, which is the stock price on the grant date, is expensed
on a straight-line basis as the restriction period lapses. The shares represented by restricted stock awards are considered outstanding at the grant date, as the
recipients are entitled to voting rights. A summary of restricted stock award activity for the period is presented below:

Non-vested
Number of Shares  

Weighted Average
Grant Date
Fair Value

Non-vested balance at January 31, 2013 137,325  $ 2.01
Granted —  —
Vested —  —
Forfeited/expired —  —

Non-vested balance at April 30, 2013 137,325  $ 2.01

At April 30, 2013, there was approximately $17,000 of compensation cost that has not yet been recognized related to restricted stock awards. That cost
is expected to be recognized over a remaining period of one year or less.

The expense associated with restricted stock awards was approximately $65,000 and $50,000 for the three months ended April 30, 2013 and 2012,
respectively.
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Item 2. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

In addition to historical information contained herein, this quarterly report on Form 10-Q contains forward-looking statements relating to plans,
strategies, expectations, intentions, etc. of Streamline Health Solutions, Inc. (“we”, “us”, “our”, or the "Company") and are made pursuant to the safe harbor
provisions of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. The forward-looking statements contained herein are no guarantee of future performance
and are subject to certain risks and uncertainties that are difficult to predict and actual results could differ materially from those reflected in the forward-
looking statements. These risks and uncertainties include, but are not limited to, the impact of competitive products and pricing, product demand and market
acceptance, new product development, key strategic alliances with vendors that resell our products, our ability to control costs, availability of products
produced from third party vendors, the healthcare regulatory environment, potential changes in legislation, regulation and government funding affecting the
healthcare industry, healthcare information system budgets, availability of healthcare information systems trained personnel for implementation of new
systems, as well as maintenance of legacy systems, fluctuations in operating results, effects of critical accounting policies and judgments, changes in
accounting policies or procedures as may be required by the Financial Accountings Standards Board or other similar entities, changes in economic, business
and market conditions impacting the healthcare industry generally and the markets in which we operate and nationally, and our ability to maintain compliance
with the terms of our credit facilities, and other risk factors that might cause such differences including those discussed herein, including, but not limited to,
discussions in the sections entitled Part I, “Item 1. Financial Statements” and “Item 2. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and
Results of Operations.” In addition, other written or oral statements that constitute forward-looking statements may be made by us or on our behalf. Readers
are cautioned not to place undue reliance on these forward-looking statements, which reflect management's analysis only as of the date thereof. We undertake
no obligation to publicly revise these forward-looking statements, to reflect events or circumstances that arise after the date hereof. Readers should carefully
review the risk factors described in this and other documents we file from time to time with the Securities and Exchange Commission, including the annual
report on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q and any current reports on Form 8-K.

The following discussion and analysis should be read in conjunction with the Company's Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements and related
Notes included elsewhere in this Quarterly Report on From 10-Q.
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Results of Operations

Acquisition of Meta Health Technology, Inc.

On August 16, 2012, the Company acquired substantially all of the outstanding stock of Meta Health Technology, Inc., a New York corporation
(“Meta”). The Company paid a total purchase price of approximately $14,790,000, consisting of cash payment of $13,288,000 and the issuance of 393,086
shares of our common stock at an agreed upon price of $4.07 per share. The fair value of the common stock at the date of issuance was $3.82. As of October
31, 2012, the Company had acquired 100% of Meta’s outstanding shares. The purchase price is subject to certain adjustments related principally to the
delivered working capital level, which will be settled in the third quarter of fiscal 2013, and/or indemnification provisions. Under the acquisition method of
accounting, the purchase price was allocated to the tangible and intangible assets acquired and liabilities assumed based on their estimated fair values as of the
acquisition date. The operations of Meta are consolidated with the results of the Company from August 16, 2012.

Statement of Operations for the quarters ended (amounts in thousands):

Three Months Ended   

April 30, 2013  April 30, 2012  Change  % Change

Systems sales $ 324  $ 354  $ (30)  (8)%
Professional services 919  1,122  (203)  (18)%
Maintenance and support 3,381  2,352  1,029  44 %
Software as a service 1,849  1,618  231  14 %

Total revenues 6,473  5,446  1,027  19 %
Cost of sales 3,177  2,647  530  20 %
Selling, general and administrative 3,581  1,670  1,911  114 %
Product research and development 1,097  456  641  141 %

Total operating expenses 7,855  4,773  3,082  65 %
Operating profit (loss) (1,382)  673  (2,055)  (305)%
Other income (expense), net (1,309)  (172)  (1,137)  661 %
Income tax expense (20)  (9)  (11)  122 %
Net earnings (loss) $ (2,710)  $ 492  $ (3,202)  (651)%
Adjusted EBITDA(1) $ 685  $ 1,713  $ (1,028)  (60)%
_______________

(1) Non-GAAP measure meaning earnings before interest, tax, depreciation, amortization, stock-based compensation expense, transactional and one-time
costs. See “Use of Non-GAAP Financial Measures” below for additional information and reconciliation.
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The following table sets forth, for each fiscal quarter indicated, certain operating data as percentages:

Statement of Operations(1)

Three Months Ended

April 30, 2013  April 30, 2012

Systems sales 5.0 %  6.5 %
Professional services 14.2  20.6
Maintenance and support 52.2  43.2
Software as a service 28.6  29.7

Total revenues 100.0 %  100.0 %
Cost of sales 49.1  48.6
Selling, general and administrative 55.3  30.7
Product research and development 16.9  8.4

Total operating expenses 121.4  87.6
Operating profit (loss) (21.4)  12.4
Other income (expense), net (20.2)  (3.2)
Income tax net loss (0.3)  (0.2)
Net earnings (loss) (41.9)%  9.0 %
Cost of systems sales 197.1 %  193.9 %
Cost of services, maintenance and support 22.7 %  15.9 %
Cost of software as a service 31.3 %  42.2 %
_______________

(1) Because a significant percentage of the operating costs are incurred at levels that are not necessarily correlated with revenue levels, a variation in the
timing of systems sales and installations and the resulting revenue recognition can cause significant variations in operating results. As a result, period-to-
period comparisons may not be meaningful with respect to the past operations nor are they necessarily indicative of the future operations of the Company
in the near or long-term. The data in the table is presented solely for the purpose of reflecting the relationship of various operating elements to revenues
for the periods indicated.

Revenues

Revenues consisted of the following (in thousands):

Three Months Ended   

April 30, 2013  April 30, 2012  Change  % Change

System Sales (1):        
Proprietary software $ 78  $ 120  $ (42)  (35)%
Term licenses 226  —  226  — %
Hardware & third party software 20  233  (213)  (91)%

Professional services 919  1,122  (203)  (18)%
Maintenance & support 3,381  2,352  1,029  44 %
Software as a service 1,849  1,618  231  14 %
Total Revenues $ 6,473  $ 5,445  $ 1,028  19 %
_______________

(1) Proprietary software, hardware, and term licenses are the components of the system sales line item. Term licenses are comprised of Meta software only.
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Proprietary software and term liceneses — Proprietary software revenues recognized for the three months ended April 30, 2013 decreased by $42,000,
or 35%, over the the prior comparable period. This decrease is attributable to reduced volume of HIM licenses delivered to clients in the current year quarter
as compared to the prior comparable quarter, which is offset by the delivery of one computer assisted coding ("CAC") license in the current quarter. Recurring
CAC term license sales of $226,000 are incremental revenues provided by the acquired Meta operations.

Hardware and third party software — Revenues from hardware and third party software sales for the three months ended April 30, 2013 were $19,982,
a decrease of $213,000, or 91%, over the the prior comparable period. The decrease in hardware and third party software revenue is primarily attributable to a
reduction in customer demand for third party peripheral devices as compared to the prior year comparable period.

Professional services — Revenues from professional services for the three months ended April 30, 2013 were $919,000, a decrease of $203,000, or
18%, from the prior comparable period. Professional services provided by the acquired Meta operations for the three months ended April 30, 2013 were
$378,000, and were offset by a decrease of $617,000 in legacy services due to the timing of which revenue could be recognized based on services performed.

Maintenance and support — Revenues from maintenance and support for the three months ended April 30, 2013 were $3,381,000, an increase of
$1,029,025, or 44%, from the prior comparable period. The increase in maintenance and support results from revenue provided by the acquired Meta
operations of $1,247,000, and was partially offset by planned attrition of certain perpetual license customers. Typically, maintenance renewals include a price
increase based on the prevailing consumer price index, or increase in the product set purchased by the client.

Software as a service (SaaS) — Revenues from SaaS for the three months ended April 30, 2013 were $1,849,000, an increase of $231,000, or 14%,
from the prior comparable period. This increase is attributable to the recognition of add-on SaaS contracts signed, primarily in our PFS-SaaS product line.

Cost of Sales

  Three Months Ended     

(in thousands): April 30, 2013  April 30, 2012  Change  % Change

Cost of systems sales $ 639  $ 687  $ (48)  (7)%
Cost of professional services 974  553  421  76 %
Cost of maintenance and support 985  725  260  36 %
Cost of software as a service 579  682  (103)  (15)%
Total cost of sales $ 3,177  $ 2,647  $ 530  20 %

The increase in cost of sales for the three months ended April 30, 2013 is primarily the result of incremental operational costs incurred for the acquired
Meta operations as well as the amortization of the internally-developed software acquired as part of the Meta acquisition.

Cost of systems sales includes amortization and impairment of capitalized software expenditures, royalties, and the cost of third-party hardware and
software. Cost of systems sales, as a percentage of systems sales, varies from period-to-period depending on hardware and software configurations of the
systems sold. The relatively fixed cost of the capitalized software amortization, without the addition of any impairment charges, compared to the variable
nature of system sales causes these percentages to vary dramatically.

The cost of professional services includes compensation and benefits for personnel, and related expenses. The increase in expense is primarily due to
incremental operational costs associated with the acquired Meta operations, as well as increases in staffing for our PFS-SaaS services line.

The cost of maintenance and support includes compensation and benefits for client support personnel and the cost of third party maintenance contracts.
The increase in expense is primarily due to incremental operational costs associated with the acquired Meta operations.

The cost of software as a service is relatively fixed, but subject to inflation for the goods and services it requires. The decrease is related to incremental
data center costs that were incurred in the prior comparable period that had no comparable expense for the three months ended April 30, 2013.
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Selling, General and Administrative Expense

  Three Months Ended     

(in thousands): April 30, 2013  April 30, 2012  Change  % Change

General and administrative expenses $ 2,843  $ 1,195  $ 1,648  138%
Sales and marketing expenses 738  475  263  55%

Total selling, general, and administrative $ 3,581  $ 1,670  $ 1,911  114%

General and administrative expenses consist primarily of compensation and related benefits and reimbursable travel and living expenses related to the
Company’s executive and administrative staff, general corporate expenses, amortization of intangible assets, and occupancy costs. The increase over the prior
year is primarily due to the incremental increase for general and administrative expenses associated with the acquired Meta operations. Amortization of
intangible assets added incremental expense to the three months ended April 30, 2013 due to the amortization of assets acquired as part of the acquisition of
Interpoint and Meta. We recognized approximately $314,000 in amortization expense for the three months ended April 30, 2013 for acquired intangible assets
as compared to $72,000 in the prior comparable period. The Company also incurred increased expense due to investor relations and acquisition search
activities, as well as additional costs from executive severances and other costs associated with our corporate office move to Atlanta, Georgia.

Sales and marketing expenses consist primarily of compensation and related benefits and reimbursable travel and living expenses related to the
Company’s sales and marketing staff; advertising and marketing expenses, including trade shows and similar type sales and marketing expenses. The increase
in sales and marketing expense reflects an increase in costs associated with increased trade show activity and other marketing programs.

Product Research and Development

  Three Months Ended     

(in thousands): April 30, 2013  April 30, 2012  Change  % Change

Research and development expense $ 1,097  $ 456  $ 641  141 %
Plus: Capitalized research and development cost 460  507  (47)  (9)%

Total R&D cost $ 1,557  $ 963  $ 594  62 %

Product research and development expenses consist primarily of compensation and related benefits; the use of independent contractors for specific near-
term development projects; and an allocated portion of general overhead costs, including occupancy. Research and development expense increased due to
higher support for newly released software versions, which also decreased the number of hours available to be capitalized, which is reflected in the capitalized
research and development costs. The acquired Meta operations contributed an incremental $386,000 in research and development expenses. Additionally, the
hours available for capitalization decreased for the HIM product line, and costs not eligible for capitalization increased compared to the prior comparable
period. Research and development expenses for the three months ended April 30, 2013 and 2012, as a percentage of revenues, were 17% and 8%,
respectively.

Other Income (Expense)

Interest expense for the three months ended April 30, 2013 and 2012 was $567,000 and $208,000, respectively. Interest expense consists of interest and
commitment fees on the line of credit, interest (including accruals for success fees) on the term loans entered into in conjunction with the Interpoint and Meta
acquisitions, interest on the convertible note entered into in conjunction with the Interpoint acquisition, and is inclusive of deferred financing cost
amortization. Interest expense increased for the three months ended April 30, 2013 primarily because of the increases from the term loan interest and success
fees, and amortization of deferred financing costs related to the Meta acquisition. The Company also recorded a valuation adjustment to its warrants liability,
recorded as miscellaneous expense of $645,000, using assumptions made by management to adjust to the current fair market value of the warrants at April 30,
2013.

Provision for Income Taxes

The Company recorded a tax expense of $20,000 and $9,000 for the three months ended April 30, 2013 and 2012 respectively, which is comprised of
estimated federal alternative minimum tax, state and local tax provisions.
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Backlog

 April 30, 2013  April 30, 2012

Company proprietary software $ 3,304,000  $ 94,000
Hardware and third-party software 77,000  140,000
Professional services 8,040,000  5,240,000
Maintenance and support 23,017,000  10,973,000
Software as a service 18,607,000  15,000,000

Total $ 53,045,000  $ 31,447,000

At April 30, 2013, the Company had master agreements and purchase orders from clients and remarketing partners for systems and related services
which have not been delivered or installed which, if fully performed, would generate future revenues of approximately $53,045,000 compared with
$31,447,000 at April 30, 2012.

The Company’s proprietary software backlog consists of signed agreements to purchase software licenses and term licenses. Typically, this is software
that is not yet generally available, or the software is generally available and the client has not taken possession of the software.

Third-party hardware and software consists of signed agreements to purchase third-party hardware or third-party software licenses that have not been
delivered to the client. These are products that the Company resells as components of the solution a client purchases. The decrease in backlog is primarily due
to a reduction in the volume of third-party sales as opposed to the prior comparable period. These items are expected to be delivered in the next twelve
months as implementations commence.

Professional services backlog consists of signed contracts for services that have yet to be performed. Typically, backlog is recognized within twelve
months of the contract signing. The increase in backlog is due to several clients that signed contracts during fiscal 2012 for add-on solutions, upgrades, or
expansion of services at additional locations for which contracted services have not yet been performed.

Maintenance and support backlog consists of maintenance agreements for licenses of the Company’s proprietary software and third party hardware and
software with clients and remarketing partners for which either an agreement has been signed or a purchase order under a master agreement has been
received. The Company includes in backlog the signed agreements through their respective renewal dates. Typical maintenance contracts are for a one year
term and are renewed annually. Clients typically prepay maintenance and support which is billed 30-60 days prior to the beginning of the maintenance period.
Maintenance and support backlog at April 30, 2013 was $23,017,000 as compared to $10,973,000 at April 30, 2012. A significant portion of this increase is
due to backlog added by Meta maintenance contracts. Additionally, as part of renewals contracts are typically subject to an annual increase in fees based on
market rates and inflationary metrics.

At April 30, 2013, the Company had entered into software as a service agreements, which are expected to generate revenues of $18,607,000 through
their respective renewal dates in fiscal years 2013 through 2018. Typical SaaS terms are one to seven years in length. The commencement of revenue
recognition for SaaS varies depending on the size and complexity of the system, the implementation schedule requested by the client, and ultimately the
official go-live on the system. Therefore, it is difficult for the Company to accurately predict the revenue it expects to achieve in any particular period.

All of the Company’s master agreements are generally non-cancelable but provide that the client may terminate its agreement upon a material breach by
the Company, or may delay certain aspects of the installation. There can be no assurance that a client will not cancel all or any portion of a master agreement
or delay portions of the agreement. A termination or delay in one or more phases of an agreement, or the failure of the Company to procure additional
agreements, could have a material adverse effect on the Company’s financial condition, and results of operations.

Use of Non-GAAP Financial Measures

In order to provide investors with greater insight, and allow for a more comprehensive understanding of the information used by management and the
board of directors in its financial and operational decision-making, the Company may supplement the Consolidated Financial Statements presented on a
GAAP basis in this quarterly report on Form 10-Q with the following non-GAAP financial measures: EBITDA, Adjusted EBITDA, Adjusted EBITDA
Margin, and Adjusted EBITDA per diluted share.
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These non-GAAP financial measures have limitations as analytical tools and should not be considered in isolation or as a substitute for analysis of
Company results as reported under GAAP. The Company compensates for such limitations by relying primarily on our GAAP results and using non-GAAP
financial measures only as supplemental data. We also provide a reconciliation of non-GAAP to GAAP measures used. Investors are encouraged to carefully
review this reconciliation. In addition, because these non-GAAP measures are not measures of financial performance under GAAP and are susceptible to
varying calculations, these measures, as defined by the Company, may differ from and may not be comparable to similarly titled measures used by other
companies.

EBITDA, Adjusted EBITDA, Adjusted EBITDA Margin, and Adjusted EBITDA per diluted share

The Company defines: (i) EBITDA, as net earnings (loss) before net interest expense, income tax expense (benefit), depreciation and amortization;
(ii) Adjusted EBITDA, as net earnings (loss) before net interest expense, income tax expense (benefit), depreciation, amortization, stock-based compensation
expense, and transaction expenses and other one-time costs; (iii) Adjusted EBITDA Margin, as Adjusted EBITDA as a percentage of net revenue; and
(iv) Adjusted EBITDA per diluted share as Adjusted EBITDA divided by adjusted diluted shares outstanding. EBITDA, Adjusted EBITDA, Adjusted
EBITDA Margin and Adjusted EBITDA per diluted share are used to facilitate a comparison of our operating performance on a consistent basis from period
to period and provide for a more complete understanding of factors and trends affecting our business than GAAP measures alone. These measures assist
management and the board and may be useful to investors in comparing the Company’s operating performance consistently over time as they remove the
impact of our capital structure (primarily interest charges), asset base (primarily depreciation and amortization), items outside the control of the management
team (taxes), and costs that we expect to be non-recurring including: transaction related expenses (such as professional and advisory services), corporate
restructuring expenses (such as severances), and other operating costs that are expected to be non-recurring. Adjusted EBITDA removes the impact of share-
based compensation expense, which is another non-cash item. Adjusted EBITDA per diluted share will include incremental shares in the share count that
would be considered anti-dilutive in a GAAP net loss position.

The board of directors and management also use these measures as (i) one of the primary methods for planning and forecasting overall expectations and
for evaluating, on at least a quarterly and annual basis, actual results against such expectations; and, (ii) as a performance evaluation metric in determining
achievement of certain executive and associate incentive compensation programs.

The Company’s lenders use Adjusted EBITDA to assess our operating performance. The Company’s credit agreements with its lender require delivery
of compliance reports certifying compliance with financial covenants certain of which are based on an adjusted EBITDA measurement that is the same as the
Adjusted EBITDA measurement reviewed by our management and board of directors.

EBITDA, Adjusted EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA Margin are not measures of liquidity under GAAP, or otherwise, and are not alternatives to cash
flow from continuing operating activities; despite the advantages regarding the use and analysis of these measures as mentioned above. EBITDA, Adjusted
EBITDA, Adjusted EBITDA Margin, and Adjusted EBITDA per diluted share as disclosed in this quarterly report on Form 10-Q, have limitations as
analytical tools, and you should not consider these measures in isolation, or as a substitute for analysis of Company results as reported under GAAP; nor are
these measures intended to be measures of liquidity or free cash flow for our discretionary use. Some of the limitations of EBITDA, and its variations are:

• EBITDA does not reflect our cash expenditures or future requirements for capital expenditures or contractual commitments;

• EBITDA does not reflect changes in, or cash requirements for, our working capital needs;

• EBITDA does not reflect the interest expense, or the cash requirements to service interest or principal payments under our credit agreement;

• EBITDA does not reflect income tax payments we are required to make; and

• Although depreciation and amortization are non-cash charges, the assets being depreciated and amortized often will have to be replaced in the future,
and EBITDA does not reflect any cash requirements for such replacements.

Adjusted EBITDA has all the inherent limitations of EBITDA. To properly and prudently evaluate our business, the Company encourages readers to
review the GAAP financial statements included elsewhere in this quarterly report on Form 10-Q, and not rely on any single financial measure to evaluate our
business. The Company also strongly urges readers to review the reconciliation of GAAP net earnings (loss) to Adjusted EBITDA, and GAAP earnings (loss)
per diluted share to Adjusted EBITDA per diluted share in this section, along with the Consolidated Financial Statements included elsewhere in this quarterly
report on Form 10-Q.
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The following table sets forth a reconciliation of EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA to net earnings (loss), a comparable GAAP-based measure, as well as
earnings (loss) per diluted share to Adjusted EBITDA per diluted share. All of the items included in the reconciliation from net earnings (loss) to EBITDA to
Adjusted EBITDA and the related per share calculations are either recurring non-cash items, or items that management does not consider in assessing the
Company’s on-going operating performance. In the case of the non-cash items, management believes that investors may find it useful to assess the
Company’s comparative operating performance because the measures without such items are less susceptible to variances in actual performance resulting
from depreciation, amortization and other non-recurring expenses and more reflective of other factors that affect operating performance. In the case of the
other non-recurring items, management believes that investors may find it useful to assess the Company’s operating performance if the measures are
presented without these items because their financial impact does not reflect ongoing operating performance.

The following table reconciles net earnings (loss) to EBITDA, Adjusted EBITDA, Adjusted EBITDA Margin, and Adjusted EBITDA per diluted share
for the fiscal periods ended April 30, 2013 and 2012 (amounts in thousands, except per share data):

 Three Months Ended

Adjusted EBITDA Reconciliation April 30, 2013  April 30, 2012

Net earnings (loss) $ (2,710)  $ 492
Interest expense 567  208
Tax expenses 20  9
Depreciation 171  180
Amortization of capitalized software development costs 695  555
Amortization of intangible assets 314  91

     Amortization of other costs 10  —
EBITDA (933)  1,535

Stock-based compensation expense 467  178
Associate severances and other costs relating to transactions or corporate restructuring 383  —
Non-cash valuation adjustments to assets and liabilities 645  —
Transaction related professional fees, advisory fees, and other internal direct costs 74  —
Other non-recurring operating expenses 49  —

Adjusted EBITDA $ 685  $ 1,713
Adjusted EBITDA margin(1) 11%  31%

Adjusted EBITDA per diluted share April 30, 2013  April 30, 2012

Earnings (loss) per share — diluted $ (0.24)  $ 0.05
Adjusted EBITDA per adjusted diluted share (2) $ 0.04  $ 0.17
Diluted weighted average shares 12,534,474  10,337,109

Includable incremental shares — adjusted EBITDA(3) 5,213,514  —
Adjusted diluted shares 17,747,988  10,337,109
_______________

(1) Adjusted EBITDA as a percentage of GAAP revenues

(2) Adjusted EBITDA per adjusted diluted share for the Company's common stock is computed using the more dilutive of the two-class method or the if-
converted method

(3) The number of incremental shares that would be dilutive under profit assumption, only applicable under a GAAP net loss. If GAAP profit is earned in the
current period, no additional incremental shares are assumed

Application of Critical Accounting Policies

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates and judgments that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities, disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amount of revenue and
expenses during the reporting period. Management considers an accounting policy to be critical if the accounting policy requires management to make
particularly difficult, subjective or complex judgments about matters that are inherently uncertain. A summary of our critical accounting policies is included
in ITEM 7. Management’s Discussion And Analysis Of Financial Condition And Results Of Operations, of Part II, of our Annual
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Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended January 31, 2013. There have been no material changes to the critical accounting policies disclosed in our
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended January 31, 2013.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

The Company’s liquidity is dependent upon numerous factors including: (i) the timing and amount of revenues and collection of contractual amounts
from clients, (ii) amounts invested in research and development, capital expenditures, and (iii) the level of operating expenses, all of which can vary
significantly from quarter-to-quarter. The Company’s primary cash requirements include regular payment of payroll and other business expenses, interest
payments on debt, and capital expenditures. Capital expenditures generally include computer hardware and computer software to support internal
development efforts or infrastructure in the SaaS data center. Operations are funded by cash generated by operations and borrowings under credit facilities.
The Company believes that cash flows from operations and available credit facilities are adequate to fund current obligations for the next twelve months.
Cash and cash equivalents balances at April 30, 2013 and January 31, 2013 were $4,001,000 and $7,500,000 , respectively. Continued expansion may require
the Company to take on additional debt, or raise capital through issuance of equities, or a combination of both. There can be no assurance the Company will
be able to raise the capital required to fund further expansion.

Significant cash obligations

(in thousands)

As of April 30

2013  2012

Term loans $ 13,375  $ 13,688
Contingent consideration for earn-out (1) 1,320  1,320
Capital leases (2) —  —
_______________

(1) Estimated for financial disclosure purposes only. Please reference “Note F – Debt” in the Notes to the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements for
additional information.

(2) We entered into a capital lease for computer equipment that will commence in the second quarter of fiscal 2013. The lease is for a 24-month period and
we will be obligated to pay approximately $298,000 over that period.

In December 2011, the Company signed a definitive asset purchase agreement to purchase substantially all of Interpoint’s assets for a combination of
cash and a convertible subordinated note totaling $5,000,000. Additionally, the Agreement provided for a contingent earn out payment in cash or convertible
subordinated notes based on Interpoint’s financial performance for the twelve month period beginning six months after closing and ending 12 months
thereafter. Please reference “Note F—Debt” in the Notes to the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements for additional information.

In conjunction with the Meta acquisition, on August 16, 2012, we amended our previous term loan and line of credit agreements with Fifth Third Bank,
whereby Fifth Third Bank provided us with a $5,000,000 revolving line of credit, a $5,000,000 senior term loan and a $9,000,000 subordinated term loan, a
portion of which was used to refinance the previously outstanding $4,120,000 subordinated term loan. Please reference a Note F—Debt” in the Notes to the
Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements for additional information.

Operating cash flow activities

(in thousands)

Three Months Ended

April 30, 2013  April 30, 2012

Net earnings (loss) $ (2,710)  $ 492
Non-cash adjustments to net earnings (loss) 2,376  1,024
Cash impact of changes in assets and liabilities (2,375)  110
Operating cash flow $ (2,709)  $ 1,626

Net cash (used in) provided by operating activities in fiscal 2013 decreased in the current year primarily due to a decrease in profitability, decreases in
accounts payable, as well as an increase in accounts receivables. This was offset primarily by non-cash increases from increases in amortization expenses
from capitalized software development costs and intangible assets, increased share based compensation expense, an increase to the warrant liability, and a
reduction in deferred revenue.

The Company’s clients typically have been well-established hospitals or medical facilities or major health information system companies that resell the
Company’s solutions, which have good credit histories and payments have been received
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within normal time frames for the industry. However, some healthcare organizations have experienced significant operating losses as a result of limits on
third-party reimbursements from insurance companies and governmental entities. Agreements with clients often involve significant amounts and contract
terms typically require clients to make progress payments. Adverse economic events, as well as uncertainty in the credit markets, may adversely affect the
availability of financing for some of our clients.

Investing cash flow activities

(in thousands)

Three Months Ended

April 30, 2013  April 30, 2012

Purchases of property and equipment $ (79)  $ (228)
Capitalized software development costs (460)  (507)
Investing cash flow $ (539)  $ (735)

The decrease in cash used for investing activities is primarily a result of a reduction in the hours available for capitalization as well as a decrease in
capital expenditures as compared to the prior comparable quarter. The Company estimates that to replicate its existing internally developed software would
cost significantly more than the stated net book value of $12,582,000, including acquired internally developed software of Meta and Interpoint, at April 30,
2013. Many of the programs related to capitalized software development continue to have significant value to the Company’s current solutions and those
under development, as the concepts, ideas, and software code are readily transferable and are incorporated into new solutions.

Financing cash flow activities

(in thousands)

Three Months Ended

April 30, 2013  April 30, 2012

Principal repayments on term loans $ (313)  $ —
Other 62  —
Financing cash flow $ (251)  $ —

The decrease in cash from financing activities was primarily the result of repayments on the term loans.
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Item 3. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

Not applicable.

Item 4.   CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

As of the end of the period covered by this quarterly report on Form 10-Q, an evaluation was performed under the supervision and with the participation
of our senior management, including our Chief Executive Officer (principal executive officer) and Chief Financial Officer (principal financial officer), of the
effectiveness of the design and operation of our disclosure controls and procedures to provide reasonable assurance of achieving the desired objectives of the
disclosure controls and procedures. In designing and evaluating the disclosure controls and procedures, management recognized that any controls and
procedures, no matter how well designed and operated, can only provide reasonable assurance of achieving the desired control objectives and management is
required to apply its judgment in evaluating the cost-benefit relationship of possible controls and procedures. Based on that evaluation, our management,
including the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures were not effective at the reasonable
assurance level as of the end of the period covered by this quarterly report on Form 10-Q. The Company's policies and procedures did not provide for a
sufficiently detailed review of contract terms. As a result, a few instances were identified during the current quarter related to the inaccurate application of
U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) with respect to certain contract terms. Following completion of the quarter, we strengthened the depth
of our internal financial team with the addition of a Chief Accounting Officer with significant industry and accounting experience. In addition, we performed
additional analysis and other post-closing procedures to ensure that our consolidated financial statements were prepared in accordance with GAAP.
Accordingly, we believe that the consolidated financial statements included in this report fairly present, in all material respects, our financial condition, results
of operations, and cash flows for the periods presented.

Except as described above, there were no material changes in our internal controls over financial reporting during the most recently completed fiscal
quarter that have materially affected or are reasonably likely to materially affect our internal controls over financial reporting.
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PART II. OTHER INFORMATION

Item 1. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

We are, from time to time, a party to various legal proceedings and claims, which arise, in the ordinary course of business. We are not aware of any legal
matters that will have a material adverse effect on our consolidated results of operations or consolidated financial position and cash flows.

Item 6. EXHIBITS

See Index to Exhibits.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the
undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

 STREAMLINE HEALTH SOLUTIONS, INC.

DATE: June 14, 2013 By: /S/    Robert E. Watson

 
Robert E. Watson

Chief Executive Officer
DATE: June 14, 2013 By: /S/    Nicholas A. Meeks

  
Nicholas A. Meeks

Chief Financial Officer
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INDEX TO EXHIBITS

EXHIBITS

Exhibit No. Description of Exhibit

3.1(a) Certificate of Incorporation of Streamline Health Solutions, Inc. f/k/a/ LanVision Systems, Inc. (Incorporated herein by reference
from the Registration Statement on Form S-1, File Number 333-01494, as filed with the Commission on April 15, 1996.)

3.1(b) Certificate of Incorporation of Streamline Health Solutions, Inc., amendment No. 1. (Incorporated herein by reference from Exhibit
3.1(b) of the Form 10-Q, as filed with the Commission on September 8, 2006.)

3.2 Bylaws of Streamline Health Solutions, Inc., as amended and restated on July 22, 2010, (Incorporated herein by reference from
Exhibit 3.2 of Form 10-Q, as filed with the Commission on September 9, 2010.)

3.3 Certificate of the Designations, Powers, Preferences and Rights of the Convertible Preferred Stock (Par Value $.01 Per Share) of
Streamline Health Solutions, Inc. (Incorporated herein by reference from the Registration Statement on Form S-1, File Number 333-
01494, as filed with the Commission on April 15, 1996.)

10.1# Employment Agreement dated April 22, 2013 between Streamline Health Solutions, Inc. and Robert E. Watson (Incorporated herein
by reference from Exhibit 10.1 of the Form 8-K, as filed with the Commission on April 26, 2013.)

10.2# Form of Stock Option Agreement pursuant to the 2013 Stock Incentive Plan of Streamline Health Solutions, Inc.
10.3# Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement (for Directors) pursuant to the 2013 Stock Incentive Plan of Streamline Health

Solutions, Inc.
31.1*** Certification by Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) or 15d-14(a) of the Exchange Act pursuant to Section 302 of

the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
31.2*** Certification by Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) or 15d-14(a) of the Exchange Act pursuant to Section 302 of the

Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
32.1*** Certification by Chief Executive Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-

Oxley Act of 2002.
32.2*** Certification by Chief Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-

Oxley Act of 2002.
101 The following financial information from Streamline Health Solutions, Inc.'s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the three month

period ended April 30, 2013 filed with the SEC on June 14, 2013, formatted in XBRL includes: (i) Condensed Consolidated
Balance Sheets at April 30, 2013 and January 31, 2013, (ii)Condensed Consolidated Statements of Operations for three month
periods ended April 30, 2013 and 2012, (iii) Condensed Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the three month periods ended
April 30, 2013 and 2012, and (iv) Notes to the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements.

_______________

*** Included herein
# Management Contracts and Compensatory Arrangements.

Our SEC file number reference for documents filed with the SEC pursuant to the Securities Exchange Act of 1943, as amended, is 0-281
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STREAMLINE HEALTH SOLUTIONS, INC.
2013 STOCK INCENTIVE PLAN

Stock Option Agreement

THIS AGREEMENT (together with Schedule A, attached hereto, the “Agreement”) is made effective as of the date specified as the
“Grant Date” on Schedule A hereto (the “Grant Date”) between STREAMLINE HEALTH SOLUTIONS, INC., a Delaware corporation (the
“Company”), and ________________, an Employee of, or individual in service to, the Company or an Affiliate (the “Participant”).

RECITALS:

In furtherance of the purposes of the Streamline Health Solutions, Inc. 2013 Stock Incentive Plan, as it may be amended (the “Plan”),
and in consideration of the services of the Participant and such other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are
hereby acknowledged, the Company and the Participant hereby agree as follows:

Incorporation of Plan. The rights and duties of the Company and the Participant under this Agreement shall in all respects be subject to
and governed by the provisions of the Plan, the terms of which are incorporated herein by reference. In the event of any conflict between the
provisions in this Agreement and those of the Plan, the provisions of the Plan shall govern, unless the Administrator determines otherwise.
Unless otherwise defined herein, capitalized terms in this Agreement shall have the same definitions as set forth in the Plan.

Grant of Option; Term of Option. The Company hereby grants to the Participant pursuant to the Plan, as a matter of separate
inducement and agreement in connection with his or her employment or service to the Company, and not in lieu of any salary or other
compensation for his or her services, the right and option (the “Option”) to purchase all or any part of such aggregate number of shares (the
“Shares”) of common stock of the Company (the “Common Stock”) at a purchase price (the “Option Price”) as specified on Schedule A,
attached hereto, and subject to such other terms and conditions as may be stated herein or in the Plan or on Schedule A. The Participant
expressly acknowledges that the terms of Schedule A shall be incorporated herein by reference and shall constitute part of this Agreement. The
Company and the Participant further acknowledge that the Company’s signature on the signature page hereof, and the Participant’s signature on
the Grant Letter contained in Schedule A, shall constitute their acceptance of all of the terms of this Agreement. The Option shall be designated
as an Incentive Option or Nonqualified Option, as stated on Schedule A. To the extent that the Option (or any portion thereof) is designated as
an Incentive Option but does not qualify as an Incentive Option, the Option (or portion thereof) shall be treated as a Nonqualified Option. The
term of the Option (the “Option Period”) shall be specified in Schedule A and, except as otherwise provided in the Plan or this Agreement, the
Option will expire if not exercised in full by the expiration date specified in Schedule A.

Stockholder Rights. The Participant and his or her legal representative, legatee or distribute shall not be deemed to be the holder of any
Shares subject to the Option and shall not have any rights of a stockholder unless and until certificates for such Shares have been issued and
delivered to him, her or them (or, in the case of uncertificated shares, other written notice of ownership in accordance with Applicable Law
shall have been provided).



Exercise of Option. Subject to the terms of the Plan and this Agreement, the Option shall become exercisable on the date or
dates set forth on Schedule A attached hereto. To the extent that the Option is exercisable but is not exercised, the Option shall accumulate and
be exercisable by the Participant in whole or in part at any time prior to expiration of an Option, subject to the terms of the Plan and this
Agreement. The Participant expressly acknowledges that the Option may vest and be exercisable only upon such terms and conditions as are
provided in this Agreement and the Plan. Upon the exercise of an Option in whole or in part, payment of the Option Price in accordance with
the provisions of the Plan and this Agreement, and satisfaction of such other conditions as may be established by the Administrator or this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, payment of any withholding taxes or similar amounts pursuant to Section 9(a) of this Agreement, the
Company shall as soon thereafter as practicable deliver to the Participant a certificate or certificates for the Shares purchased. Except where
prohibited by the Administrator or Applicable Law (and subject to such terms and conditions as may be established by the Administrator),
payment of the Option Price shall be made in the form of cash or cash equivalent. The total number of Shares that may be acquired upon
exercise of the Option shall be rounded down to the nearest whole share.

Effect of Change of Control. In the event that (a) the employment or service of the Participant is terminated within six months
before (in which case vesting shall not occur until the effective date of the Change of Control) or one year (or such other period after a Change
of Control as may be stated in the Participant's change in control agreement, employment agreement or similar agreement, if applicable) after
the effective date of a Change of Control, and (b) such termination of employment or service is (i) by the Company not for Cause or (ii) by the
Participant for Good Reason, then the Option shall become fully vested and exercisable, whether or not then otherwise vested and exercisable.
For clarification, for the purposes of this Section 5, the “Company” shall include any successor to the Company.

Effect of Termination of Employment or Service. The Option shall not be exercised unless the Participant is, at the time of the
exercise, an Employee and has been an Employee continuously since the date the Option was granted, subject to the following:

(a)    The Option shall not be affected by any change in the terms, conditions or status of the Participant’s employment,
provided that the Participant continues to be an Employee.

(b)    The employment relationship of the Participant shall be treated as continuing intact for any period that the Participant is
on military or sick leave or other bona fide leave of absence, provided that the period of such leave does not exceed ninety (90) days,
or, if longer, as long as the Participant’s right to reemployment is guaranteed either by statute or by contract. The employment
relationship of the Participant shall also be treated as continuing intact while the Participant is not in active service because of a
Disability.

(c)    If the employment of the Participant is terminated because of death or Disability, the Option may be exercised only to the
extent vested and exercisable on the Participant’s Termination Date, and any portion of the Option that is not vested as of the
Participant’s Termination Date shall terminate as of such date. The Option, to the extent vested, must be exercised, if at all, prior to the
first to occur of the following, whichever shall be applicable (after which time the Option shall terminate): (A) the close of the one-year
period next succeeding the Termination Date; or (B) the close of the Option Period. In the event of the Participant’s death, the Option
shall be exercisable by such person or persons as shall have acquired the right to exercise the Option by will or by the laws of intestate
succession.
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(d)    If the employment of the Participant is terminated for any reason other than death, Disability or for Cause, the Option
may be exercised to the extent exercisable on his or her Termination Date, and any portion of the Option that has not vested as of the
Participant’s Termination Date shall terminate as of such date. The Option, to the extent vested, must be exercised, if at all, prior to the
first to occur of the following, whichever shall be applicable (after which time the Option shall terminate): (A) the close of the three-
month period next succeeding the Termination Date; or (B) the close of the Option Period. If the Participant dies following such
termination of employment and prior to the earlier of the dates specified in (A) or (B) of this subparagraph (d), the Participant shall be
treated as having died while employed under subparagraph (c) immediately preceding (treating for this purpose the Participant’s date of
employment as the Termination Date). In the event of the Participant’s death, such Option shall be exercisable by such person or
persons as shall have acquired the right to exercise the Option by will or by the laws of intestate succession.

(e)    If the employment of the Participant terminates for Cause, his Option shall lapse and no longer be exercisable as of his
Termination Date.

No Right of Continued Employment; Forfeiture of Option. Nothing contained in this Agreement or the Plan shall confer upon
the Participant any right to continue in the employ or service of the Company or an Affiliate, or to interfere in any way with the right of the
Company or an Affiliate to terminate the Participant’s employment or service at any time. Except as otherwise expressly provided in the Plan,
this Agreement (including but not limited to Schedule A) or as may be determined by the Administrator, all rights of the Participant with
respect to the unexercised portion of his or her Option shall terminate upon the Participant’s Termination Date. The Participant expressly
acknowledges and agrees that the termination of his or her employment or service shall (except as may otherwise be provided in this
Agreement or the Plan) result in forfeiture of the Option and any Shares subject to the Option to the extent the Option has not been exercised as
of the date of his or her termination of employment or service. The grant of the Option does not create any obligation to grant further awards.

Nontransferability of Option. To the extent that this Option is designated as an Incentive Option, the Option shall not be
transferable (including by sale, assignment, pledge or hypothecation) other than transfers by will or the laws of intestate succession, or, in the
Administrator’s discretion, such transfers as may otherwise be permitted in accordance with Treas. Reg. Section 1.421-1(b)(2) or Treas. Reg.
Section 1.421-2(c) or any successor provisions thereto. To the extent that this Option is designated as a Nonqualified Option, the Option shall
not be transferable (including by sale, assignment, pledge or hypothecation) other than by will or the laws of intestate succession, except for
transfers if and to the extent permitted by the Administrator in a manner consistent with the Plan and the registration provisions of the
Securities Act. Except as may be permitted by the preceding, the Option shall be exercisable during the Participant’s lifetime only by the
Participant or his guardian or legal representative. The designation of a beneficiary in accordance with the Plan does not constitute a transfer.

Withholding; Tax Consequences.

(a)    The Participant acknowledges that the Company shall require the Participant to pay to the Company in cash the amount of
any tax or other amount required by any governmental authority to be withheld and paid over by the Company to such authority for the
account of the Participant, and the Participant agrees, as a condition to the grant of the Option and delivery of any Shares, to satisfy
such obligations. Such tax or other withholding amounts must be paid in cash or cash equivalent prior to the issuance of the Shares
underlying the Option, or portion thereof, being exercised.
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(b)    The Participant acknowledges that the Company has made no warranties or representations to the Participant with respect
to the tax consequences (including but not limited to income tax consequences) with respect to the transactions contemplated by this
Agreement, and the Participant is in no manner relying on the Company or its representatives for an assessment of such tax
consequences. The Participant acknowledges that there may be adverse tax consequences upon the grant or exercise of the Option
and/or the acquisition or disposition of the Shares subject to the Option and that he or she has been advised that he or she should
consult with his or her own attorney, accountant and/or tax advisor regarding the decision to enter into this Agreement and the
consequences thereof. The Participant also acknowledges that the Company has no responsibility to take or refrain from taking any
actions in order to achieve a certain tax result for the Participant.

Administration. The authority to construe and interpret this Agreement and the Plan, and to administer all aspects of the Plan,
shall be vested in the Administrator, and the Administrator shall have all powers with respect to this Agreement as are provided in the Plan,
including but not limited to the sole authority to determine whether and to what degree the Option has been earned and vested. Any
interpretation of this Agreement by the Administrator and any decision made by it with respect to this Agreement is final and binding.

Superseding Agreement; Successors and Assigns. This Agreement supersedes any statements, representations or agreements of the
Company with respect to the grant of the Option, any other equity-based awards or any related rights, and the Participant hereby waives any
rights or claims related to any such statements, representations or agreements. Except as may be otherwise provided in the Plan, this Agreement
does not supersede or amend any existing Change in Control Agreement, Confidentiality Agreement, Nonsolicitation Agreement,
Noncompetition Agreement, Nondisparagement Agreement, Employment Agreement, Consulting Agreement or any other similar agreement
between the Participant and the Company, including, but not limited to, any restrictive covenants contained in such agreements. This
Agreement shall be binding upon and shall inure to the benefit of the parties hereto and their respective executors, administrators, next-of-kin,
successors and assigns.

Governing Law. Except as otherwise provided in the Plan or herein, this Agreement shall be construed and enforced according to the
laws of the State of Delaware, without regard to the conflict of laws provisions of any state, and in accordance with applicable federal laws of
the United States.

Amendment; Waiver. Subject to the terms of the Plan and this Agreement, this Agreement may be modified or amended only by the
written agreement of the parties. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Administrator shall have unilateral authority to amend the Plan and this
Agreement (without Participant consent) to the extent necessary to comply with Applicable Law or changes to Applicable Law (including but
not limited to federal securities laws and Code Section 409A, Code Section 422 and federal securities laws). The waiver by the Company of a
breach of any provision of this Agreement by the Participant shall not operate or be construed as a waiver of any subsequent breach by the
Participant.

Notices. Except as may be otherwise provided by the Plan, any written notices provided for in this Agreement or the Plan shall
be in writing and shall be deemed sufficiently given if either hand delivered or if sent by fax or overnight courier, or by postage paid first class
mail. Notices sent by mail shall be deemed received three business days after mailed but in no event later than the date of actual receipt. Notice
may also be provided by electronic submission, if and to the extent permitted by the Administrator. Notices shall be directed, if to the
Participant, at the Participant’s address indicated by the Company’s records, or if to the Company, at the Company’s principal office, attention
Chief Financial Officer, Streamline Health Solutions, Inc.
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Severability. The provisions of this Agreement are severable and if any one or more provisions may be determined to be illegal
or otherwise unenforceable, in whole or in part, the remaining provisions shall nevertheless be binding and enforceable.

Restrictions on Option and Shares. The Company may impose such restrictions on the Option and any Shares or other benefits
underlying the Option as it may deem advisable, including without limitation restrictions under the federal securities laws, the requirements of
any stock exchange or similar organization and any blue sky, state or foreign securities laws applicable to such Option or Shares.
Notwithstanding any other provision in the Plan or this Agreement to the contrary, the Company shall not be obligated to issue, deliver or
transfer shares of Common Stock, to make any other distribution of benefits, or to take any other action, unless such delivery, distribution or
action is in compliance with all Applicable Law (including but not limited to the requirements of the Securities Act). The Company is under no
obligation to the Participant to register Shares nor to comply for the Participant’s benefit with any exemption from registration so that the
Participant may sell or otherwise transfer the Shares. If shares are issued to the Participant without having been registered, a restrictive legend
(in the form prescribed by Applicable Law or as may be advised by legal counsel) will be placed on the certificate, stop-transfer instructions
will be issued with respect to the shares and the Participant will have to hold the Shares indefinitely unless they are subsequently registered or
an exemption from registration is available.

Counterparts; Further Instruments. This Agreement may be executed in two or more counterparts, each of which shall be
deemed an original, but all of which together shall constitute one and the same instrument. The parties hereto agree to execute such further
instruments and to take such further action as may be reasonably necessary to carry out the purposes and intent of this Agreement.

Compliance with Recoupment, Ownership and Other Policies or Agreements. As a condition to receiving this Option, the Participant
agrees that he or she shall abide by all provisions of any equity retention policy, compensation recovery policy, stock ownership guidelines
and/or other similar policies maintained by the Company, each as in effect from time to time and to the extent applicable to Participant from
time to time. In addition, the Participant shall be subject to such compensation recovery, recoupment, forfeiture, or other similar provisions as
may apply at any time to the Participant under Applicable Law.

Notice of Disposition. To the extent that the Option is designated as an Incentive Option, if any Shares are disposed of within
two (2) years following the date of grant or one year following the transfer of such Shares to the Participant upon exercise, the Participant shall,
promptly following such disposition, notify the Company in writing of the date and terms of such disposition and provide such other
information regarding the disposition as the Administrator may reasonably require.

[Signature Page to Follow]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement has been executed on behalf of the Company and by the Participant effective as of the
Grant Date stated herein.

STREAMLINE HEATLH SOLUTIONS, INC.

By: ______________________________________
Nicholas A. Meeks
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

Attest:

__________________________________
Carolyn Zelnio, Chief Accounting Officer

[Signature Page of Participant to Follow on Schedule A/Grant Letter]
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Streamline Health Solutions, Inc.
2013 Stock Incentive Plan
Stock Option Agreement

Schedule A/Grant Letter

1.    Grant Terms. Pursuant to the terms and conditions of the Company’s 2013 Stock Incentive Plan, as it may be amended (the
“Plan”), and the Stock Option Agreement attached hereto (the “Agreement”), you (the “Participant”) have been granted [an Incentive Option][a
Nonqualified Option] (the “Option”) to purchase _______________ shares of Common Stock (the “Shares”) as outlined below. Unless
otherwise defined herein, capitalized terms in this Schedule A shall have the same definitions as set forth in the Agreement and the Plan.    

Granted To:        ________________________
Grant Date:        ________________________
Number of Shares Subject to Option:        ________________________
Option Price per Share:        ________________________
Type of Option:        ________________________
Option Period:         ________________________
Expiration Date:        ________________________

        
Vesting of Option∗.

[Insert Schedule]

[Signature Page to Follow]
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By my signature below, I, the Participant, hereby acknowledge receipt of this Grant Letter and the Agreement. I understand that the
Grant Letter and other provisions of Schedule A herein are incorporated by reference into the Agreement and constitute a part of the
Agreement. By my signature below, I further agree to be bound by the terms of the Plan and the Agreement, including but not limited to the
terms of this Grant Letter and the other provisions of Schedule A contained herein.

Signature:                                     Date:             
            

Note: If there are any discrepancies in the name shown above, please make the appropriate corrections on this form and return to Attention:
Chief Financial Officer, Streamline Health Solutions, Inc., 1230 Peachtree St NE, Suite 1000, Atlanta, Georgia 30309. Please retain a copy of
the Agreement, including this Grant Letter, for your files.

A-2



STREAMLINE HEALTH SOLUTIONS, INC.
2013 STOCK INCENTIVE PLAN

Restricted Stock Award Agreement

THIS AGREEMENT (together with Schedule A, attached hereto, the “Agreement”), is made effective as of the Grant Date (as defined
below) between STREAMLINE HEALTH SOLUTIONS, INC. a Delaware corporation (the “Company”), and                                 , a Director
of the Company or an Affiliate (the “Participant”).

R E C I T A L S :

In furtherance of the purposes of the Streamline Health Solutions, Inc. 2013 Stock Incentive Plan, as it may be hereafter amended (the
“Plan”), and in consideration of the services of the Participant and such other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of
which are hereby acknowledged, the Company and the Participant hereby agree as follows:

1. Incorporation of Plan. The rights and duties of the Company and the Participant under this Agreement shall in all respects be
subject to and governed by the provisions of the Plan, the terms of which are incorporated herein by reference. In the event of any conflict
between the provisions in this Agreement and those of the Plan, the provisions of the Plan shall govern, unless the Administrator determines
otherwise. Unless otherwise defined herein, capitalized terms in this Agreement shall have the same definitions as set forth in the Plan.

2.    Terms of Award. The following terms used in this Agreement shall have the meanings set forth in this Section 2:

(a)    The “Participant” is                                 .

(b)    The “Grant Date” is                                 .

(c)    The “Restriction Period” is the period beginning on the Grant Date and ending on such date or dates and satisfaction of
such conditions as described in Schedule A, which is attached hereto and expressly made a part of this Agreement.

(d)    The number of shares of Common Stock subject to the Restricted Stock Award granted under this Agreement shall be
                 shares (the “Shares”).

3.    Grant of Restricted Stock Award. Subject to the terms of this Agreement and the Plan, the Company hereby grants the Participant,
a Restricted Stock Award (the “Award”) for that number of Shares of Common Stock as is set forth in Section 2. The Participant expressly
acknowledges that the terms of Schedule A shall be incorporated herein by reference and shall constitute part of this Agreement. The Company
and the Participant further acknowledge that the Company’s and the Participant’s signatures on the signature page hereto shall constitute their
acceptance of all terms of this Agreement, including Schedule A.

4.    Vesting of Award. Subject to the terms of the Plan, the Award shall be deemed vested and earned upon such date or dates, and
subject to such conditions, as are described in this Agreement, including but not limited to the terms of Schedule A, attached hereto. The
Administrator shall have sole authority to determine whether and to what degree the Award has vested and been earned and is payable and to
interpret the terms and conditions of this Agreement and the Plan.

5.    Effect of Change of Control. In the event that (a) the service of the Participant is terminated within six months before (in which
case vesting shall not occur until the effective date of the Change of Control) or one year (or such other period after a Change of Control as
may be stated in the Participant's change in control agreement, employment agreement or similar agreement, if applicable) after the effective
date of a Change of Control, and (b) such termination of service is (i) by the Company not for Cause or (ii) by the Participant for Good Reason,
then the Award shall become fully vested and exercisable, whether or not then otherwise vested and exercisable. For clarification, for the
purposes of this Section 5, the “Company” shall include any successor to the Company.

6.    Effect of Termination of Service. Except as may be otherwise provided in the Plan or this Agreement, in the event that the service
of the Participant is terminated for any reason (whether by the Company or the Participant and whether voluntary or involuntary) and all or any
part of the Award has not vested or been earned pursuant to the terms of the Plan and Section 3, Section 4, Section 5 and Schedule A herein,
then the Award, to the extent not vested or earned, shall be forfeited immediately upon such termination, and the Participant shall have no
further rights thereto. The Participant expressly acknowledges and agrees that the termination of his or her service shall result in forfeiture of
the Award and the Shares to the extent the Award has not been earned and vested as of his or her Termination Date. The grant of the Award
does not create any obligation to grant further awards.

7.    Settlement of Award. The Award shall be payable in whole shares of Common Stock.

8.    No Right of Service; Forfeiture of Award. Nothing contained in this Agreement or the Plan shall confer upon the Participant any
right to continue in the service of the Company or an Affiliate or to interfere in any way with the right of the Company or an Affiliate to
terminate the Participant’s service at any time. Except as otherwise expressly provided in the Plan and this Agreement, or as may be determined
by the Administrator, all rights of the Participant with respect to the Award shall terminate upon the Participant’s Termination Date.

9.    Nontransferability of Award and Shares. The Award shall not be transferable (including by sale, assignment, pledge or
hypothecation) other than transfer by will or the laws of intestate succession. The Participant shall not sell, transfer, assign, pledge or otherwise
encumber the Shares subject to the Award (except as provided in Section 13 herein) until the Restriction Period has expired and all conditions
to vesting and transfer have been met. The designation of a beneficiary in accordance with the Plan does not constitute a transfer.



10.    Superseding Agreement; Successors and Assigns. This Agreement supersedes any statements, representations or agreements of
the Company with respect to the grant of the Award, any other equity-based awards or any related rights, and the Participant hereby waives any
rights or claims related to any such statements, representations or agreements. Except as otherwise provided in the Plan, this Agreement does
not supersede or amend any existing Change in Control Agreement, Confidentiality Agreement, Nonsolicitation Agreement, Noncompetition
Agreement, Nondisparagement Agreement, Employment Agreement, Consulting Agreement or any other similar agreement between the
Participant and the Company, including, but not limited to, any restrictive covenants contained in such agreements. This Agreement shall be
binding upon and shall inure to the benefit of the parties hereto and their respective executors, administrators, next-of-kin, successors and
assigns.

11.    Governing Law. Except as otherwise provided in the Plan or herein, this Agreement shall be construed and enforced according to
the laws of the State of Delaware, without regard to the conflict of laws provisions of any state, and in accordance with applicable federal laws
of the United States.

12.    Amendment; Waiver. Subject to the terms of the Plan and this Agreement, this Agreement may be modified or amended only by
the written agreement of the parties. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Administrator shall have unilateral authority to amend the Plan and this
Agreement (without Participant consent) to the extent necessary to comply with Applicable Law or changes to Applicable Law (including but
not limited to federal securities laws and Code Section 409A. The waiver by the Company of a breach of any provision of this Agreement by
the Participant shall not operate or be construed as a waiver of any subsequent breach by the Participant.

13.    Stockholder Rights. The Participant and his or her legal representative, legatee or distributee shall not be deemed to be the holder
of any shares subject to the Award and shall not have any rights of a stockholder unless and until certificates for such shares have been issued
and delivered to him or her or them (or, in the case of uncertificated shares, other written notice of ownership in accordance with Applicable
Law shall have been provided). A certificate or certificates representing the Shares subject to the Award shall be issued in the name of the
Participant (or, in the case of uncertificated shares, other written evidence of ownership in accordance with Applicable Law shall be provided)
after the Award has been granted. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Administrator may require that (a) the Participant deliver the certificate(s)
(or other instruments) for the Shares to the Administrator or its designee to be held in escrow until the Award vests and is no longer subject to
substantial risk of forfeiture (in which case the Shares will be promptly released to the Participant) or is forfeited (in which case the Shares shall
be returned to the Company); and/or (b) the Participant deliver to the Company a stock power, endorsed in blank (or similar instrument),
relating to the Shares subject to the Award which are subject to forfeiture. Except as otherwise provided in the Plan or the Agreement, the
Participant will have all voting, dividend and other rights of a stockholder with respect to the Shares following issuance of the certificate or
certificates for the Shares; provided, however, that if any cash or non-cash dividends are declared and paid by the Company with respect to any
such Shares, such dividends shall be subject to the same vesting schedule, forfeiture terms and other restrictions as are applicable to the Shares
upon which such dividends are paid.

14.    Withholding; Tax Consequences.

(a)    The Participant acknowledges that the Company shall require the Participant to pay to the Company in cash the amount of
any tax or other amount required by any governmental authority to be withheld and paid over by the Company to such authority for the
account of the Participant, and the Participant agrees, as a condition to the grant of the Award and delivery of the Shares or any other
benefit, to satisfy such obligations.

(b)    The Participant acknowledges that the Company has made no warranties or representations to the Participant with respect
to the tax consequences (including, but not limited to, income tax consequences) related to the transactions contemplated by this
Agreement, and the Participant is in no manner relying on the Company or its representatives for an assessment of such tax
consequences. The Participant acknowledges that there may be adverse tax consequences upon acquisition or disposition of the Shares
subject to the Award and that he or she has been advised that he or she should consult with his own attorney, accountant and/or tax
advisor regarding the decision to enter into this Agreement and the consequences thereof. The Participant also acknowledges that the
Company has no responsibility to take or refrain from taking any actions in order to achieve a certain tax result for the Participant.

15.    Administration. The authority to construe and interpret this Agreement and the Plan, and to administer all aspects of the Plan,
shall be vested in the Administrator, and the Administrator shall have all powers with respect to this Agreement as are provided in the Plan,
including but not limited to the sole authority to determine whether and to what degree the Award has been earned and vested. Any
interpretation of the Agreement by the Administrator and any decision made by it with respect to the Agreement is final and binding.

16.    Notices. Except as may be otherwise provided by the Plan, any written notices provided for in this Agreement or the Plan shall be
in writing and shall be deemed sufficiently given if either hand delivered or if sent by fax or overnight courier, or by postage paid first class
mail. Notices sent by mail shall be deemed received three business days after mailed but in no event later than the date of actual receipt. Notice
may also be provided by electronic submission, if and to the extent permitted by the Administrator. Notices shall be directed, if to the
Participant, at the Participant’s address indicated by the Company’s records, or if to the Company, at the Company’s principal office, attention
Chief Financial Officer, Streamline Health Solutions, Inc.

17.    Severability. The provisions of this Agreement are severable and if any one or more provisions may be determined to be illegal or
otherwise unenforceable, in whole or in part, the remaining provisions shall nevertheless be binding and enforceable.

18.    Restrictions on Award and Shares. The Company may impose such restrictions on the Award and the Shares or other benefits
underlying the Award as it may deem advisable, including without limitation restrictions under the federal securities laws, the requirements of
any stock exchange or similar organization and any blue sky, state or foreign securities laws applicable to such Award or Shares.
Notwithstanding any other provision in the Plan or the Agreement to the contrary, the Company shall not be obligated to issue, deliver or
transfer shares of Common Stock, to make any other distribution of benefits, or to take any other action, unless such delivery, distribution or
action is in compliance with all Applicable Law (including but not limited to the requirements of the Securities Act). The Company is under no
obligation to the Participant to register Shares nor to comply for the Participant’s benefit with any exemption from registration so that the
Participant may sell or otherwise transfer the Shares. If Shares are issued to the Participant without having been registered, a restrictive legend



(in the form prescribed by Applicable Law or as may be advised by legal counsel) will be placed on the certificate, stop-transfer instructions
will be issued with respect to the Shares and the Participant will have to hold the Shares indefinitely unless they are subsequently registered or
an exemption from registration is available.

19.    Effect of Changes in Status. Unless the Administrator, in its sole discretion, determines otherwise (or unless required by Code
Section 409A), the Award shall not be affected by any change in the terms, conditions or status of the Participant’s service, provided that the
Participant continues to be in service to the Company or an Affiliate. Without limiting the foregoing, the Administrator has sole discretion to
determine, subject to Code Section 409A, at the time of grant of the Award or at any time thereafter, the effect, if any, on the Award if the
Participant’s status as a Director changes, including but not limited to changes in the nature or scope of the Participant’s service occur.

20.    Right of Offset. Notwithstanding any other provision of the Plan or the Agreement, the Company may at any time reduce the
amount of any payment otherwise payable to or on behalf of the Participant by the amount of any obligation of the Participant to the Company
that is or becomes due and payable, and the Participant shall be deemed to have consented to such reduction.

21.    Counterparts; Further Instruments. This Agreement may be executed in two or more counterparts, each of which shall be deemed
an original, but all of which together shall constitute one and the same instrument. The parties hereto agree to execute such further instruments
and to take such further action as may be reasonably necessary to carry out the purposes and intent of this Agreement.

22.    Compliance with Recoupment, Ownership and Other Policies or Agreements. As a condition to receiving this Award, the
Participant agrees that he or she shall abide by all provisions of any equity retention policy, compensation recovery policy, stock ownership
guidelines and/or other similar policies maintained by the Company, each as in effect from time to time and to the extent applicable to
Participant from time to time. In addition, the Participant shall be subject to such compensation recovery, recoupment, forfeiture, or other
similar provisions as may apply at any time to the Participant under Applicable Law.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement has been executed in behalf of the Company and by the Participant on the day and year first
above written.

STREAMLINE HEALTH SOLUTIONS, INC.

By: _______________________________________ 
Nicholas A. Meeks 
Senior Vice President and 
Chief Financial Officer

Attest:
 
 
_______________________________________
Carolyn Zelnio, Chief Accounting Officer

 
 

PARTICIPANT

_____________________________________(SEAL) 
Printed Name:________________________________

 
STREAMLINE HEALTH SOLUTIONS, INC.

2013 STOCK INCENTIVE PLAN

Restricted Stock Award Agreement

SCHEDULE A

Grant Date: ____________________
Number of Shares Subject to Award: ___________ shares.
Restriction Period: The Shares subject to the Award shall vest and be earned, as provided below, subject to the terms and conditions as may be
imposed by the Plan and the Agreement:
 

Date of Vesting Percentage of Shares Vested

[Insert Schedule]



Exhibit 31.1
STREAMLINE HEALTH SOLUTIONS, INC.

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER PURSUANT TO RULE 13a - 14(a) OR 15(d) - 14(a) OF THE EXCHANGE ACT, AS ADOPTED
PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Robert E. Watson, certify that:

I have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of Streamline Health Solutions, Inc.;

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements
made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial
condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and
have:

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that
material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during
the period in which this report is being prepared;

Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles;

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the
disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter
that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to
adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial
reporting.
 

June 14, 2013 /s/ Robert E. Watson

 
Chief Executive Officer and
President



Exhibit 31.2

STREAMLINE HEALTH SOLUTIONS, INC.

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER PURSUANT TO RULE 13a - 14(a) OR 15(d) - 14(a) OF THE EXCHANGE ACT, AS ADOPTED
PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Nicholas A. Meeks, certify that:

I have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of Streamline Health Solutions, Inc.;

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements
made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial
condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and
have:

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that
material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during
the period in which this report is being prepared;

Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles;

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the
disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter
that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to
adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial
reporting.
 

June 14, 2013 /s/ Nicholas A. Meeks
 Chief Financial Officer



Exhibit 32.1
STREAMLINE HEALTH SOLUTIONS, INC.

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350, AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF
2002

I, Robert E. Watson, Chief Executive Officer and President of Streamline Health Solutions, Inc. (the “Company”), certify, pursuant to Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, 18 U.S.C Section 1350, that:

 
(1) The quarterly report on Form 10-Q of the Company for the quarter ended April 30, 2013 (the “Report”) fully complies with the

requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

 
(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition, and results of operations of

the Company.

/s/ Robert E. Watson
Robert E. Watson
Chief Executive Officer and
President
June 14, 2013

A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 has been provided to the Company and will be retained by the Company and furnished to
the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request.



Exhibit 32.2
STREAMLINE HEALTH SOLUTIONS, INC.

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350, AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF
2002

I, Nicholas A. Meeks, Chief Financial Officer of Streamline Health Solutions, Inc. (the “Company”), certify, pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley
Act of 2002, 18 U.S.C Section 1350, that:

 
(1) The quarterly report on Form 10-Q of the Company for the quarter ended April 30, 2013 (the “Report”) fully complies with the

requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

 
(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition, and results of operations of

the Company.

/s/ Nicholas A. Meeks
Nicholas A. Meeks
Chief Financial Officer
June 14, 2013

A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 has been provided to the Company and will be retained by the Company and furnished to
the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request.


